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CONDITION

The only non-domestic structure surviving in the present
village of Esmond from the earliest period its manufacturing
development is a stone building thirty foot square on the
exterior, two stories plus attic with gable roof on Esmond
Street south of the mill dam. The rubble walls of the building}
which appears to have been the company storehouse, are typical
of the construction of cotton textile mills and associated
structures in the area built during and after the War of 1812,

—

The original fenestration is largely evident, although the
easterm first story window of the front facade has been some-
what enlarged. This and other alterations may have occurred
during the last decades of the nineteenth century or the early
years of the twentieth when the building became the United
States Post Office. A side entrance on the southwestern end
of the building appears to be a later change, perhaps replacing
an original window. A flat pedimented front door enframement
with attached columns on protruding plinths and surrounded
with wooden rustication similarly appears to be an alteration,
but one which provides an important visual point to the simple
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Long considered the cotton mill erected in:.1813 by
Governor Philip Allen, it is more likely that this sole
surviving stone structure of the early mill was the company
storehouse. Philip Allen's brother, Zachariah, recorded in
his Diary for March 5, 1821 a list of costs for carpentry
"paid by P. Allen for building his factory" which includes
the earliest description of the "Cotton mill 36 feet by 60 from
outside to outside". An insurance policy taken by Philip
Allen in 1836 includes his stone cotton factory as well as

a "Store and cloth: room", Corroboration for the use of the
surviving 30 foot square stone building as the company store-
house is found in a lithograph map entitled "The Cotton Mill
Estate, Smithfield, R.I." surveyed by Cushing and Farnum and
recorded in the town deeds (plat alO) in 1858, The building
is recorded as number 10, a "Storehouse (of) Stone" and measured
30!' x 30! on the map. The post office was located in the
building in 1937 when the Federal Writer's Project published
the guidebook of Rhode Island, calling the building the "old
Allenville Mill",

The original owner of the property, Esek Smith, sold this
plot of L% empty acres to Philip Allen in 1813. Allen main-
tained ownership of this mill complex known as Allenville
during his terms as Governor of Rhode Island (1851-53) and sold
the property during his terms as United States Senator (1853~
59) in 1857. The business again changed ownership in 1860 and
was renamed the Smithfield Manufacturing Company.

The significance of the small store building as the sole
surviving non-domestic structure of the early nineteenth century
mill complex built by one of the state's major political figures
is enhanced by comparison with other mill villages in Rhode
Island, Nearly all of the company storehouses of the hundreds
of mill communities erected in the state prior to the mid/
nineteenth century have been destroyed, A survey of the ver-
nacular architecture of Rhode Island mill villages taken in .
1970 failed to locate an earlier storage building in the state.,
An integral part of the manufacturing community of the period,
this small structure at Esmond retains its visual prominence

in the village and could be rehabilitated to continue its long
history of public use.,
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